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Forecast and Supply Planning (FASP) Modernization Tool; #PSM-HQ-FASP-002 

 

Questions 

1. Will a cost proposal template be provided to be utilized for submission? 

Cost proposal guidance is discussed in Annex 4 on pages 62 and 63. 

 

2. What countries will end users of this forecast and supply planning tool be located? 

The legacy tools are utilized in over 40 countries. The span of the tool could include all countries 

where PSM works and more. Info at https://www.ghsupplychain.org/where-we-work. 

 

3. Are the requirements for MVP the same as the requirements that are stated in Annex-11, 

Annex-12, Annex-13, and Annex-14? 

Yes 

 

4. Please clarify the purpose of Annex 13 (Reporting-Requirements) and Annex-14 (ASP-

Tool_Information_Flow-Mapping) in the context of MVP scope. 

The MVP would be able to fulfill the reporting requirements detailed in Annex 13. The 

Information flow mapping documentation should help clarify the design or algorithms needed 

for the MVP.  

 

5. Current number of users per each system as well as per each stakeholder? 

We don't have exact data regarding the number of users, although we know the tools have been 

utilized in over 40 countries. There is usually one database of record for each health program 

within a country. Users per program could be between 1 - 6.  

 

6. Will additional merit be assigned to proposals submitted by a NAICS-qualifying Small Business? 

No. We prioritize providing the opportunity for small businesses to bid on awards (i.e. seeking 
them out when posting a solicitation), but additional points are not afforded in the evaluation 
unless the solicitation explicitly states that criterion.  

 

7. Given that the contract is scoped as a firm fixed-price contract, is there any flexibility on the 

schedule for delivery of key features, or any process to negotiate the feasibility and timeline for 

delivery of key features? 

Yes, to some extent. If the Offeror believes there are elements that cannot be predicted in a defi-
nite and tangible manner, they may present those as reimbursable elements in addition to the 

https://www.ghsupplychain.org/where-we-work
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fixed price deliverables. However, to the greatest extent possible, all deliverables and the deliver-
able schedule should be finite, definite, and discrete. This could mean that deliverable dates are 
successive -- i.e. Deliverable 2 is due X days after the due date of Deliverable 1, or Deliverable 2 is 
contingent upon the product of Deliverable 1. 
 

8. Would Chemonics entertain a shorter-term contract that leverages a Human Centered Design 

approach to better understand the needs of the various stakeholders, in order to establish a 

strong design direction for the minimum viable product/ proof of concept? 

Offerors are free to submit offers for a shorter-term engagement so long as that offer is still in 
full compliance with the solicitation. There are several ways that this proposed approach could 
be framed, including a phased approach that would be inclusive of what would otherwise be a 
shorter-term, separate agreement.  
 

9. Please clarify if all the consortium members must be registered under the law of U.S.? While the 

prime bidder will be a US entity, we wanted to confirm if it is ok to partner with firms registered 

in other countries for this engagement 

All US Offerors must be registered under the law of the US, and are responsible for the compli-
ance therewith on the part of any subcontractors/subsidiaries to the Offeror. 
 

10. Are there any specific compliance requirements for these tools like SOX, etc? 

Offerors should refer to the requirements enumerated in the solicitation, and it is the responsibil-
ity of the Offeror to describe any additional compliance called for by the technical requirements 
of the solicitation.  
 

11. Are the current set of tools integrated with each other? If yes, are the data exchanges real time 

or batch jobs?  Please indicate which of the current tools are web based or desktop legacy 

applications. 

The tools in use by countries (PipeLine and Quantimed) are desktop legacy applications. The 

Supply Planning Tool (PipeLine) has a loose integration where countries may submit either the 

underlying access database or an excel extract of the file when reporting a supply plan.  The 

desire is to move to an application that is capable of both inbound integrations for pulling in 

relevant master and reference data and outbound integrations for exporting supply plans.  

 

12. Please elaborate on the legacy data migration requirements? Please clarify if only Quantimed 

and Pipeline (supply planning tool) data shall be migrated, or will migration also cover other 

system like For Lab, PPMR, SC-FACTS? Please also indicate the size of the database, as it will 

determine the level of effort on data migration. 

The solution should have the capability to import an existing Quantimed database(s) and 

Pipeline database(s).  The usual pattern is for each country to have a single Quantimed database 

but there are exceptions where a country may have multiple instances aligned by program (HIV, 

Malaria, etc).  This is the same with Pipeeline. The solution should support both scenarios.  These 
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access databases are relatively small (i.e. Pipeline databases are less than 10kb, Quantimed less 

than 30 mb).    

 

13. Does the minimum viable product/ proof of concept need to meet all of the business and 

technical requirements list in the Requirements Documents or merely a subset of the 

requirements? 

The minimum viable product should address all of the requirements.  

 

14. Is the requirement for modular architecture stringent? Is the primary goal of modular 

architecture to facilitate additional feature development and/or integration of additional 

systems at a later date? 

The primary objective is the ability to easily expand or add additionally features over time in a 

“plugin” based model.  The solution must be able to support this capability.  Modular 

architecture is preferred to ensure any additional features in a particular module will have 

minimal impact to other modules that are not part of the enhancement. Modular architecture 

also promotes agile development. Another key aspect of modular approach is to ensure 

interoperability, not only between modules but also with external systems to exchange data that 

might be in diverse formats 

 

15. You identify 6 reports that would be graphic/visualization with the remainder being data/export. 

Is your expectation that these are read-only reports or input/output user interfaces? 

Reports are intended to be read-only. However - some of the reports mirror user interface 

aspects of the system, which are documented elsewhere in the requirements.  Certain reports 

such as Pipeline Action may need to generate output based on user input. Reports in general will 

need data filtering options that require user inputs. For e.g. listing out shipments that are in a 

particular ‘status’ 

 

16. Are you able to indicate which business and reporting requirements must be fulfilled as part of 

the first task order/MVP? 

The minimum viable product should address all of the requirements.  

 

17. Are you able to indicate which of the business and reporting requirements is fulfilled or partially 

fulfilled by Pipeline and Quantimed and which of these requirements represents new capability? 

The majority of the requirements are fulfilled or partially fulfilled by Pipeline and Quantimed. 

New capabilities that the new system should address are listed on Page 10 of the RFP and listed 

from a to j.  In addition to this, the new capabilities include the ability to integrate statistical 

modeling in forecasting, order optimization in supply planning; and stronger integration with 

other systems. 
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18. For a more detailed assessment, additional documentation for each system is required. Please 

provide overall description (or architectural description) of each system, as well as user manuals 

for each system role (per each system). 

Additional documentation can be found as follows: 

• PipeLine 4 User’s Guide:  Link added to the RFP page.  

• PipeLine Software Database Administrator’s Guide:  

https://www.jsi.com/JSIInternet/Resources/publication/display.cfm?txtGeoArea=INTL&i

d=17192&thisSection=Resources 

• Quantimed User’s Guide – Version 1.2:  Link added to the RFP page.   

 

19. Please provide the volume of data that should be migrated to the new system? 

This is to be determined. Over forty countries utilize the current tools of Quantimed and Pipeline; 

which are access based tools. These databases are relatively small (i.e. Pipeline databases are 

less than 10MB, Quantimed less than 30MB).   A program may have 1 - 6 databases depending 

on the health programs they support.  

 

20. As per the RFP we can suggest open source, licensed or mixed technology stack, please confirm 

this assumption? 

Open source solutions are preferred; however, licensed solutions are also acceptable.  The 

proposed technology stack can be open source, licensed or a combination. But vendors should 

explain the rationale and methodology used to arrive at choosing one over the other and how it 

will meet the overall requirements and how it will scale in the future.  

 

21. Will it be sufficient to use cloud-based hosting or do we need to host the tools in the company’s 

data center? 

Cloud-based hosting is acceptable but response times for the solution must be appropriate / 

usable for the countries.  These are predominately in the Africa and Asia regions but could 

potentially include Latin America. There should also be enough data security.  

 

22. It is mentioned in the RFP that some tools may be reused, so for assessing this possibility we will 

need access to these tools. Can details of these tools be provided to us? 

The tools are available for download on the following links:  

• Pipeline 5.3 is available online at https://www.ghsupplychain.org/pipeline-monitoring-

and-procurement-planning-system, password P1peL1ne.  

• Quantimed is available online 

at https://www.dropbox.com/s/rx16w4p2airect2/qmedinstall_2010_32_PSM.exe?dl=0 

(32 bit) 

https://www.jsi.com/JSIInternet/Resources/publication/display.cfm?txtGeoArea=INTL&id=17192&thisSection=Resources
https://www.jsi.com/JSIInternet/Resources/publication/display.cfm?txtGeoArea=INTL&id=17192&thisSection=Resources
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and https://www.dropbox.com/s/3mce5qmo4bktwf6/qmedinstall_2010_64_PSM.exe?dl

=0 (64 bit).  

23. What types of integration with third party tools will be required? Real time, batch jobs etc? 

MVP would include the ability to import master and reference data in the form of product 

catalog, logistics, and demographic data.  System should also have the ability to import/pull 

aggregates on consumption, services, inventory and shipments.  These imports should have a 

standard format(s) that can be leveraged by other parties to prepare and send the data to the 

solution in either a human readable format (excel) and/or in a computer readable format 

(json/xml).  The solution shall have the capability to export/push supply plans. Both real time and 

batch integrations should be supported. The system should also provide capability to extract 

data manually and upload data manually in pre-defined formats (csv, xml, etc) and pre-defined 

templates. 

24. Please clarify if only “offline mode/form” for entering data without connectivity (that can be 

synced when the system is back online) is required OR a window desktop version is also 

required? 

The capability that is required is the ability to work in situations where connectivity to the 

solution can/is frequently disrupted.  The solution must have the ability to handle the situation 

gracefully without interrupting the user’s workflow.  The objective is to minimize the level of 

technical installation / support at the desktop level, so if local components need to be installed 

include the capability for how to keep said components installed/updated.  Offline mode (like a 

lightweight application) is preferred rather than a desktop version that might be more than just 

a lightweight application. System should be able to not only accept data input but process data 

and see at least some basic results in the case that the system is offline.  Vendors should clarify 

how they plan to achieve offline mode in the absence of a desktop version/client 

 

25. Can you please give us some details on the future scope and technologies that we may be 

required to support? 

The system should be scalable and interoperable to be able to integrate with multiple supply 

chain transactional as well as reporting systems that may be used across various countries. This 

might require having to support automated integrations with diverse 

integration/communication protocols such as web services, ftp, etc and diverse message formats 

such as XML, flat file, etc. In addition to this, the system should support manual data entry as 

well as upload, even if an automated integration exists for such data (as a fallback option). As 

scope of data expands to include multiple countries and multiple programs and products in the 

future, the system should support multiple forecasting models and algorithms. The system 

should be able to feed the outcomes as well as approved supply plans/forecasts to transactional 

systems. The system should also support real-time synchronous requests from transactional 

systems and respond back in real-time. 

26. Are you able to provide some degree of prioritization of the requirements relative to each 

other? 

All aspects of the RFP are considered the Minimum Viable Product. However, we would consider 

a phased development approach where the supply planning module is built out first.  

27. How many and which graphical user interfaces do you expect as part of the first task order? 
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Interfaces for both the forecasting and the supply planning module are required. We would 

consider prioritizing the development of supply planning modules first during development.  

 

28. For reporting, do we need to provide a separate Data warehouse, or should it be part of the 

same tools? 

There is not a need to provide a separate data warehouse, as the system may not be heavily 

transactional. However, if the vendor feels this might cause system performance issues those 

should be flagged, and an appropriate solution provided along with cost & schedule impacts. 

 

29. What is the estimated number of users who will be using these tools? 

We don't have exact data regarding the number of users, although we know the tools have been 

utilized in over 40 countries. There is usually one database of record for each health program 

within a country. Users per program could be between 1 - 6.  

 

30. Is there any flexibility on the minimum qualifications for key personnel such as Developers? 

Potentially, if the key requirements are met.  

 

31. May Key Personnel outside of the 4 listed roles be included or are these the only allowed 

positions? 

Potentially, if the key requirements are met.  

 

32. Are there enough column and line charts to visualize reports provided by Annex 13 (items 14-18 

and 28). If no, please provide the examples of the visualization of such reports. 

Most of these could be visualized with basic line, bar, or area charts.  For Report 17 - review the 

"information flow" provided in annex 14, which has morbidity or service forecasts potential 

visuals.  

 

 

 


